
Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - November 07, 2018

Page | 1

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM

Wednesday, November 07, 2018

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. MINUTES
2.a. Consideration of the Minutes of the October 17, 2018 Plan Commission meeting

Attachment

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS
3.a. Consideration of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Land Use Plan for the property

located at 2240 Cranston Road
Attachment

3.b. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment from C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, to
PUD, Planned Unit Development District, for the property located at 2240 Cranston Road
Attachment

4. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

5. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the
needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service,
please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/261931/10-17-2018_Plan_Commission_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/261930/November_7_Staff_Report_3_a__PUD-2018-02__Cranston_CBRF__2240_Cranston_Road.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/261932/November_7_Staff_Report_3_b___ZMA-2018-06__2240_Cranston_Road.pdf


 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Meeting Minutes 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, October 17, 2018 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00pm. Commissioners Haynes, Weeden, Johnson, 
Ruster, and City Councilor Preuschl were present. Commissioners Faragher, Finnegan and 
Robson were absent. 
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the October 3, 2018 Meeting 
Commissioner Ruster moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Haynes seconded the 
motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 
 

3. Consideration of a Resolution approving a one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map 
for property located at 5021 W Noss Road in the Town of Rock 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Johnson move to approve the Certified Survey Map. Commissioner Haynes 
seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 
  

4. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
Ms. Christensen discussed City Council’s approval of the Conditional Use Permit for Pizza 
Hut on Fourth Street.  City Council held a public hearing on the Comprehensive Plan 
Update in which the former Army Reserve Building owner came forward and requested 
that future land use be changed from Two-family/Townhouse to Mixed Residential.  That 
change would allow for a higher residential density (25 units per acre).  Staff will be 
recommending that the future land use remain as a Two-family/Townhouse.   
 
Ms. Christensen also discussed City Council’s denial of a liquor license for Nico’s 
Convenience Store and that the site plan for ABC (former Cannonball site) scheduled to 
come to the commission at this meeting will be postponed until further notice.  The 
commission will review a proposal for a PUD for a new assisted living facility on Cranston 
Rd and a Re-Zoning Amendment for La Mexicana Grocery Store on 6th Street at the next 
meeting. 
 

2



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
5. Adjournment 

Commissioner Ruster moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Johnson seconded the 
motion. 
  
Meeting adjourned at 7:30pm.  

 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Frank Fuerte. 
 

3



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: November 7, 2018

Agenda Item: 3(a)

File Number: PUD-2018-02

General Information

Applicant: Wayne Wegenke of Beloit Elderly LLC

Owner: Cranston Devel Corp (Note: Applicant Provided Copy of Accepted Offer to Purchase)

Address/Location: 2240 Cranston Road

Applicant’s Request/Proposal: The applicant has submitted an application for review and consideration of a
Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan for the development of a multi-phase assisted living
facility.

Planned Unit Development (PUD) Process: A PUD is a type of special purpose zoning district and a type of
development plan. PUD zoning districts are inextricably linked to PUD plans; no rights of development apply to
a PUD zoning designation other than those of the approved PUD plan.

PUDs shall be processed in three stages: Master Land Use Plan; Rezoning to PUD district and Final Plan.
Master Land Use Plans and Zoning Map Amendments may be processed concurrently, provided that no
rezoning to the PUD district may occur until approval of a PUD Master Land Use Plan.

The PUD Master Land Use Plan application is reviewed with respect to such issues as density, including the
number, type, and location of dwelling units and other uses; impacts on surrounding areas; and the
adequacy of facilities and services. The result of this review is the establishment of the basic parameters for
development of the PUD. PUD Master Land Use Plan approval establishes the maximum development
"envelope" with regard to density, intensity, lot sizes, overall scale, open space, environmental protection,
and other land development and service provision issues.

The PUD Final Plan is the document upon which building permits and other applicable approvals are issued.
The PUD Final Plan review stage is the point at which developers bring forward detailed plans for carrying
out the type of project conceptually approved during PUD Master Plan review. The applicant must submit
the detailed and technical information necessary to demonstrate that all applicable standards,
requirements, and conditions have been met.

Staff Analysis

Project Summary: The proposed plan contemplates up to four assisted living buildings totaling 96 units. A
copy of the PUD - Master Land Use Plan is attached to this report. The proposed buildings are approximately
14,000 square feet each and will include up to 24 units each.

4



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

Existing Site Conditions: The subject property is 6 acres in area, is used for agricultural purposes, and is
located immediately west of the Casey’s General Store parcel. There is a 100-foot electric transmission line
easement and overhead lines that separate the proposed development area from the existing Casey’s site.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning: The subject property is the largest remaining undeveloped parcel along
the busy Cranston Road corridor. Surrounding land uses include professional offices (banks, insurance
companies, etc.) and commercial (Casey’s). The subject property backs up to large residential properties along
Shopiere Road. The applicant is still contemplating how to use the “gap” area between Casey’s and the
transmission lines, which is too narrow (approximately 80 feet) for most commercial development. This gap
area will retain access to Cranston Road through an ingress/egress easement over the Casey’s driveway.

City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan: The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map
recommends Neighborhood Commercial uses, which can include neighborhood-scale group residential uses
such as the proposed PUD. This request supports Strategic Goal #3 by creating residential growth.

Zoning Ordinance Requirements:
Density/Intensity and Dimensional Standards: The proposed PUD includes a minimum front building
setback of 30 feet, a side setback of 10 feet, and a rear setback of 15 feet. These setbacks are consistent
with the minimum setbacks in the existing C-2 zoning classification. The proposed buildings are shown
beyond the minimum building setbacks.

Parking and Loading Requirements: According to Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinances, Group Living
facilities must provide at least ½ parking stall per resident room, which equates to 48 parking stalls for the
proposed development at total build-out. The applicant has proposed 32 stalls in the first phase to serve
48 rooms (24 stalls required) and 30 stalls in the second phase to serve 48 additional resident rooms (24
stalls required).

Other Requirements: The facility will be licensed by the State of Wisconsin as a Community Based Residential
Facility (CBRF), which is a form of Group Living that is allowed in certain residential and office zoning districts
in the City of Beloit. The proposed development will be subject to the City’s landscaping, lighting, signage, and
other development standards. The applicant is considering a possible condominium plat to allow each building
to have separate ownership, and if that option is chosen, a Condo Plat will be submitted separately for Plan
Commission consideration.

Review Agent Comments: The application was sent to the City’s review agents, and the following comments
were received:

Engineering Division: The development must include a full width driveway from parking lot area to Shopiere
Road access driveway during phase one of the project. The applicant must show the storm water management
areas on the site plan/Final PUD plan submittal and stormwater must be managed on the same lot as the
impervious surfaces. The applicant must secure and provide a copy of the high-voltage transmission line
easement prior to final approval. Engineering has approved the applicant’s Traffic Impact Analysis showing no
adverse effects to Cranston Road from the proposed driveway location. Public sidewalks are required.

Fire Department: At least one new public fire hydrant shall be provided to supply water for augmenting the
water supply to the facility’s sprinkler system. The rear driveway to Shopiere Road shall be constructed during
the first phase of development. Both east-west drive aisles leading to the trash enclosures should be aligned
for better vehicle maneuverability.

5



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

PUD Master Land Use Plan Review Criteria: Applications for a PUD Master Land Use Plan approval may be
approved if the following criteria are met:

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict
application of otherwise applicable zoning ordinance standards, based on the purpose and intent
of this chapter.
The plan includes multiple buildings upon one parcel, which would not be allowed through strict
application of conventional zoning standards. By layering the buildings through multiple phases, the
proposed PUD represents an efficient use of land.

2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD district standards of Section 5-300.
The proposed PUD will provide for efficient use of public utilities and vacant land, and will be an
attractive group living development that is compatible with surrounding land uses.

3. The City and other service providers will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, and
programs to serve the development proposed, at the time the property is developed;
Provided the applicant constructs the requested driveways, fire hydrants, and sidewalks, the
development will be adequately served.

4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives contained in
the Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy documents; and
The proposed buildings will include attractive architecture, quality materials, and sound site design.

5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the development
will promote the general welfare of the community.
The proposed PUD will increase the supply of housing units, efficiently use an underutilized parcel
served by public utilities, create employment opportunities, and increase the tax base, all of which
will promote the general welfare of Beloit.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the PUD – Master Land Use Plan for the
property located 2240 Cranston Road, subject to the following conditions:

1. This approval authorizes the construction of a State of Wisconsin-licensed Community Based
Residential Facility (CBRF) with up to four separate buildings containing up to 25 units each as shown
on the attached PUD – Master Land Use Plan and architectural renderings. No other commercial or
residential uses are allowed on the subject property.

2. The minimum building setbacks, maximum building height, and minimum lot dimensions shall be those
in the C-2 zoning district.

3. At least 20% of the lot area shall be open space, and any areas with grasses exceeding 8 inches in
height shall require a Land Management Plan.

4. Both proposed access driveways shall be constructed during the first phase, and the Shopiere Road
driveway shall be the primary access point for construction traffic.

5. The final PUD plan shall include and the applicant shall construct a public sidewalk in the Cranston
Road right-of-way along the entire length of the parcel, along with a private connection to the first
building to be constructed.

6. The utility plan shall include and the applicant shall provide at least one new public fire hydrant to
serve the proposed development at a location approved by the Fire Inspector.

6



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

7. To ensure long term maintenance, all stormwater management areas shall remain on the same parcel
as the buildings & parking lots and may not be subdivided into a separate outlot.

8. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit for this project, the applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review
Certificate and a Certificate of Zoning Compliance.

9. This development is allowed one freestanding monument sign up to 15 feet in height and 150 square
feet in area, which may not include an Electronically Variable Message (EVM) component. Each
building may include one wall sign up to 30 square-feet in area.

10. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan
Commission and City Council by amending this PUD – Master Land Use Plan. The Director of Planning &
Building Services may approve minor changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses
that comply with and meet all of the standards and requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code.

ATTACHMENTS: Location & Zoning Map, PUD Master Land Use Plan, Photos, Review Agent Comments, PUD
Application, Notice, and Mailing List.

7



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

8



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

Proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan

9



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

10



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

11



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

Fire Department Comments:

12



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

13



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

14



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

15



November 7 Staff Report 3(a) PUD-2018-02, Cranston CBRF, 2240 Cranston Road

16



November 7 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2018-06, 2240 Cranston Road

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: November 7, 2018

Agenda Item: 3(b)

File Number: ZMA-2018-06

General Information

Applicant: Wayne Wegenke of Beloit Elderly LLC

Owner: Cranston Devel Corp

Address/Location: 2240 Cranston Road

Applicant’s Request/Proposal: The applicant is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment from C-2,
Neighborhood Commercial District, to PUD, Planned Unit Development District.

Planned Unit Development (PUD) Process: A PUD is a type of special purpose zoning district and a type of
development plan. PUD zoning districts are inextricably linked to PUD plans; no rights of development apply to
a PUD zoning designation other than those of the approved PUD plan.

PUDs shall be processed in three stages: Master Land Use Plan; Rezoning to PUD district and Final Plan.
Master Land Use Plans and Zoning Map Amendments may be processed concurrently, provided that no
rezoning to the PUD district may occur until approval of a PUD Master Land Use Plan.

The PUD Master Land Use Plan application is reviewed with respect to such issues as density, including the
number, type, and location of dwelling units and other uses; impacts on surrounding areas; and the
adequacy of facilities and services. The result of this review is the establishment of the basic parameters for
development of the PUD. PUD Master Land Use Plan approval establishes the maximum development
"envelope" with regard to density, intensity, lot sizes, overall scale, open space, environmental protection,
and other land development and service provision issues.

The PUD Final Plan is the document upon which building permits and other applicable approvals are issued.
The PUD Final Plan review stage is the point at which developers bring forward detailed plans for carrying
out the type of project conceptually approved during PUD Master Plan review. The applicant must submit
the detailed and technical information necessary to demonstrate that all applicable standards,
requirements, and conditions have been met.

Staff Analysis

Project Summary: The proposed plan contemplates up to four assisted living buildings totaling 96 units. A
copy of the PUD - Master Land Use Plan is attached to this report. The proposed buildings are approximately
14,000 square feet each and will include up to 24 units each.

Existing Site Conditions: The subject property is 6 acres in area, is used for agricultural purposes, and is
located immediately west of the Casey’s General Store parcel. There is a 100-foot electric transmission line

17



November 7 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2018-06, 2240 Cranston Road

easement and overhead lines that separate the proposed development area from the existing Casey’s site.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning: The subject property is the largest remaining undeveloped parcel along
the busy Cranston Road corridor. Most of the corridor is zoned C-1, Office, as shown on the attached map. The
subject property and the Casey’s site are zoned C-2. Surrounding land uses include professional offices and
commercial (Casey’s). The subject property backs up to large residential properties along Shopiere Road. The
applicant is still contemplating how to use the “gap” area between Casey’s and the transmission lines, which is
too narrow (approximately 80 feet) for most commercial development. This gap area will retain access to
Cranston Road through an ingress/egress easement over the Casey’s driveway.

City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan: The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map
recommends Neighborhood Commercial uses, which can include neighborhood-scale group residential uses
such as the proposed PUD. This request supports Strategic Goal #3 by creating residential growth.

Findings of Fact: Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a
recommendation based on the following considerations:

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property.
The proposed assisted living development will have low levels of traffic and activity, and will be
compatible with the adjacent office and residential uses. The transmission lines and wide (100-foot)
easement will provide separation between the residential buildings and the Casey’s development.

2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.
The proposed assisted living development is compatible with the adjacent C-1, Office District along
Cranston Road and the permitted uses therein. The applicant will need to eventually develop, sell, or
lease the 80-foot “gap” between the transmission lines and the Casey’s site, which is part of the 6-acre
subject property. This gap area will ultimately provide the transition between the C-2 district and the
proposed assisted living facility. A PUD Amendment will be needed for uses other than open space.

3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification.
With high traffic counts, excellent visibility, and high quality adjacent development, the subject
property is suitable for uses permitted in the C-2 district. However, the property has been for sale for a
long period with limited commercial demand, likely due to the high voltage transmission lines which
bisect the property and prevent most medium-box-style development.

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
The applicant developed the Willowick assisted living facility located at 1971 Cranston Road in 2017.
The adjacent Casey’s General Store site was developed in 2013. On the opposite side of Cranston Road,
the Gateway Bank site was developed in 2009.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, to PUD, Planned Unit Development
District, for the property located at 2240 Cranston Road.

ATTACHMENTS: Location and Zoning Map, PUD Plan, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.

18



November 7 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2018-06, 2240 Cranston Road

19



November 7 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2018-06, 2240 Cranston Road

Proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan

20



November 7 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2018-06, 2240 Cranston Road

21



November 7 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2018-06, 2240 Cranston Road

22



November 7 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2018-06, 2240 Cranston Road

23



November 7 Staff Report 3(b), ZMA-2018-06, 2240 Cranston Road

24


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2018-778 - Attachment
	2018-776 - Attachment
	2018-777 - Attachment

